Public Document Pack



Democratic Services White Cliffs Business Park Dover Kent CT16 3PJ

Telephone: (01304) 821199 Website: www.dover.gov.uk e-mail: democraticservices @dover.gov.uk

11 November 2022

Dear Councillor

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT a meeting of the **OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE** will be held in the Council Chamber at these Offices on Monday 21 November 2022 at 6.00 pm when the following business will be transacted.

Members of the public who require further information are asked to contact Democratic Services on 01304 872304 or by e-mail at <u>democraticservices@dover.gov.uk</u>.

Yours sincerely **Chief Executive**

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Membership:

C D Zosseder (Chairman)

- P M Brivio (Vice-Chairman)
- T A Bond
- D R Friend
- D A Hawkes
- S C Manion
- M Rose
- R S Walkden
- P Walker H M Williams

AGENDA

1 **APOLOGIES** (Page 4)

To receive any apologies for absence.

2 APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (Page 5)

To note appointments of Substitute Members.

3 **DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST** (Page 6)

To receive any declarations of interest from Members in respect of business to be transacted on the agenda.

4 **PUBLIC SPEAKING** (Page 7)

The Chairman has varied the public speaking procedure to permit public speaking on Agenda Item 5. Registered speakers will have 3 minutes to speak.

Members of the public wishing to speak must register to do so by no later than 2.00 pm on the second working day (Thursday) before the meeting.

The right to speak does not include the right to ask any questions of any District Councillor, Officer of the Council, invited attendee, or any other public speaker.

5 **LOCAL PRIMARY AND COMMUNITY CARE SERVICES** (Pages 8 - 10)

A representative of NHS Kent and Medway will be in attendance to respond to the committees questions.

Access to Meetings and Information

- Members of the public are welcome to attend meetings of the Council, its Committees and Sub-Committees. You may remain present throughout them except during the consideration of exempt or confidential information.
- All meetings are held at the Council Offices, Whitfield unless otherwise indicated on the front page of the agenda. There is step free access via the Council Chamber entrance and an accessible toilet is available in the foyer. In addition, there is a PA system and hearing loop within the Council Chamber.
- In order to facilitate the broadcast of meetings there have been cameras set up in the Council Chamber that communicate with Microsoft Teams Live. This enables meetings held in the Council Chamber to be broadcast for public viewing through the Council's website.

The meetings in which these cameras will be used include meetings of: (a) Council; (b) Cabinet; (c) General Purposes Committee; (d) Electoral Matters Committee; (e) Governance Committee; (f) Planning Committee; (g) General Purposes Committee and (h) Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Only agenda items open to the press and public to view will be broadcast.

These recordings will be retained for 30 days from the date of the meeting. The recordings will be uploaded to YouTube as soon as practicable after the day of the meeting. In normal circumstances this would be within 2 working days of the meeting. However, there may be circumstances where it will take longer. The recordings can be viewed on the Council's YouTube Channel - <u>Council meetings - YouTube</u>

• Agenda papers are published five clear working days before the meeting. Alternatively, a limited supply of agendas will be available at the meeting, free of charge, and all agendas, reports and minutes can be viewed and downloaded from our website www.dover.gov.uk. Minutes will be published on our website as soon as practicably possible after each meeting. All agenda papers and minutes are available for public inspection for a period of six years from the date of the meeting.

• Members of the Council may receive confidential information relating to personal data as part of an item of an exempt or confidential business on the agenda. It is each Member's responsibility to ensure that this information is handled securely and confidentially as required under data protection legislation. This information must only be retained for as long as necessary and when no longer required disposed of via a shredder or the Council's secure disposal arrangements.

For further information about how this information should be processed, please view the Council's Data Protection Policy and Appropriate Policy Document at <u>www.dover.gov.uk/Corporate-Information/PDF/Data-Protection-Policy.pdf</u>

• If you require any further information about the contents of this agenda or your right to gain access to information held by the Council please contact Democratic Services, democraticservices@dover.gov.uk, telephone: 01304 872304 or email: democraticservices@dover.gov.uk for details.

Large print copies of this agenda can be supplied on request.

APOLOGIES

To receive any apologies for absence.

APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

To note appointments of Substitute Members.

Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI)

Where a Member has a new or registered DPI in a matter under consideration they must disclose that they have an interest and, unless the Monitoring Officer has agreed in advance that the DPI is a 'Sensitive Interest', explain the nature of that interest at the meeting. The Member must withdraw from the meeting at the commencement of the consideration of any matter in which they have declared a DPI and must not participate in any discussion of, or vote taken on, the matter unless they have been granted a dispensation permitting them to do so. If during the consideration of any item a Member becomes aware that they have a DPI in the matter they should declare the interest immediately and, subject to any dispensations, withdraw from the meeting.

Other Significant Interest (OSI)

Where a Member is declaring an OSI they must also disclose the interest and explain the nature of the interest at the meeting. The Member must withdraw from the meeting at the commencement of the consideration of any matter in which they have declared a OSI and must not participate in any discussion of, or vote taken on, the matter unless they have been granted a dispensation to do so or the meeting is one at which members of the public are permitted to speak for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or giving evidence relating to the matter. In the latter case, the Member may only participate on the same basis as a member of the public and cannot participate in any discussion of, or vote taken on, the matter and must withdraw from the meeting in accordance with the Council's procedure rules.

Voluntary Announcement of Other Interests (VAOI)

Where a Member does not have either a DPI or OSI but is of the opinion that for transparency reasons alone s/he should make an announcement in respect of a matter under consideration, they can make a VAOI. A Member declaring a VAOI may still remain at the meeting and vote on the matter under consideration.

Note to the Code:

Situations in which a Member may wish to make a VAOI include membership of outside bodies that have made representations on agenda items; where a Member knows a person involved, but does not have a close association with that person; or where an item would affect the well-being of a Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc. but not his/her financial position. It should be emphasised that an effect on the financial position of a Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc OR an application made by a Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc would both probably constitute either an OSI or in some cases a DPI.

PUBLIC SPEAKING

Members of the public wishing to speak must register to do so by no later than 2.00 pm on the second working day before the meeting. The agenda front sheet will specify which items public speaking applies to for that meeting.

You can only register to speak in respect of items on the agenda.

The Public Speaking Protocol does not preclude an overview and scrutiny committee, by resolution of the committee, from inviting members of the public, organisations, charities, voluntary groups or any other interested parties to address any meeting for the purpose of providing evidence in support of an item of business on the agenda.

A member of the public speaking on an agenda item must address their speech to the item they have registered to speak upon on the agenda and cannot address other agenda items or unrelated business.

Each registered speaker will have three minutes speaking time per item they have registered to speak on and no public speaker or parish council may register to speak on any more than two items on the agenda.

The right to speak does not include the right to ask any questions of any District Councillor, Officer of the Council, invited attendee, or any other public speaker.

The right of the public to speak does not apply to the following agenda items: Apologies; Appointment of Substitute Members; Minutes; the Forward Plan, the Scrutiny Work Programme (and related documentation) or any agenda item that is not accompanied by a written report.

The Chairman of the committee (or in their absence the Vice-Chairman) will have discretion to vary the time allowed and the number of speakers in cases of exceptional interest.

Dover District Council

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

NHS Kent and Medway

Commissioned Services

- (1) Which services are directly commissioned by GP's and why?
- (2) Please confirm to us which services GPs will be commissioning directly taking into account the difficulties in now getting GP appointments.

Changes to Services

(3) The NHS Long Term Plan, published in 2019, has three core aims which are (a) to make sure everyone gets the best start in life; (b) deliver world-class care for major health problems; and (c) to support people to age well.

What changes in local primary, community and hospital services are being considered now and, in the future, to achieve these aims?

(4) Are any other changes in local primary, community and hospital services being made or considered as a result of other pressures or priorities?

For example, changes emerging from new ways of working during the covid pandemic or as a consequence of budget or staffing pressures.

- (5) The change to phlebotomy service provision at Deal Hospital has understandably raised concerns over the future of other services offered there. What are the plans for service provision at Deal Hospital over the next five years?
- (6) With bus services being reduced public transport accessibility to major hospitals is becoming more difficult. What is the NHS doing to address this and are they looking at making more diagnostic tests more accessible locally?

Public Consultation

(7) What are the statutory criteria for consulting with the public about changes in local primary, community and hospital services?

In answering this question please could you give recent examples of changes where consultations have been undertaken and, if applicable, where they have not prior to a service change.

- (8) Is consultation ever undertaken about changes in local primary, community and hospital services in circumstances where there is not a statutory requirement to do so?
- (9) District Councillors have an important role as community representatives in supporting local residents including those affected by changes to primary, community and hospital services. Is there a way in which district councillors can be kept regularly informed of these changes?

Local GP Practices

- (10) The Care Quality Commission (CQC) while providing the reassurance of good or better ratings for GP practices in the Dover District has found that one practice (The Cedars, Deal) that requires improvement in respect of safe and effective categories. What is the role of Kent and Medway NHS in supporting the improvement of practices that require improvement and overall seek to continuously improve the provision and quality of services?
- (11) Why are people requesting blood tests from Specialists referred to Ashford, Canterbury or Margate rather than locally?
- (12) Why can't people book 4 or more weeks ahead for a blood test locally?
- (13) There is currently a shortage of around 4,200 full-time equivalent (FTE) GPs in England, which is projected to rise to a shortage of around 8,900 FTE GPs in 2030/31, relative to the number required to meet the rising need for care. Please could you provide in a table, broken down for each GP practice in the Dover District, the following information:

2022

- The population covered by each GP practice
- The current number of full-time equivalent (FTE) GPs at each practice
- The expected number of FTE GPs at each practice if full staffed
- The current number of other clinical staff at each GP practice (nurses, nurse practioners, paramedics, etc.)
- The expected number of other clinical staff at each GP practice if full staffed

2030/31

- The projected required number of FTE GPs at each practice in 2030/31 based on projections for population growth and rising care needs for the population
- The projected actual number of FTE GPs at each practice in 2030/31 and what plans are in place to deal with any projected shortfall

Clinical Staffing

- (14) The Nuffield Trust estimates that for the South East of England, there is a clinical staff shortfall of 8.2% for hospital and community health services. While accepting that the operational vacancy number will be lower due to agency staff cover, what is the current level of clinical staff vacancies for hospital services in East Kent and what is NHS Kent and Medway doing to support its hospital partners in ensuring safe levels, and longer term the desired levels, of clinical staffing is in place?
- (15) The Committee has previously been advised of shortages in clinical staff, beyond that expected as a result of normal turnover, in primary, community and hospital care. Is

this still the case and if so, what is being done to address these shortages in both the short and long-term?

- (16) I understand that many, though not all, shortcomings in our local service are due to chronic understaffing, as recruitment fails to fill vacancies. What are we doing to bring in the right calibre of staff?
- (17) Patients' experiences in hospitals and surgeries can be adversely affected when they have difficulty in understanding. What are you doing to improve the communication skills of staff (from consultants to health care assistants) who fail to communicate effectively?

Deal Hospital

(18) Walk in A&E services were withdrawn from Deal hospital due Covid and are only available if an appointment is made after ringing 111. Taking into account the issues with 111 why cannot this not revert to walk in facility again to take the pressure off the major the Major hospital A&E hospitals?